SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI Court of Appeals of the state of Mississippi

NO. 2007-CP-1518 Consolidated with 2007-CP-1516

JAMES E. PRUITT AND KARLOTTA PRUITT-APPELLANTS

VS.

THE ZONING BOARD OF THE CITY OF LAUREL, MS-PLANNING COMMISSION.
APPELLEE

AND

THE CITY COUNCIL OF LAUREL, MS.- APPELLEE

APPEAL

BREIF FOR THE APPELLANT

James E. Pruitt – ProSe 622 S. Magnolia Street Laurel, MS 39440 601-326-2025

ORAL ARGUMENT IS NOT REQUESTED

SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI Court of Appeals of the state of Mississippi

NO. 2007-CP-1518 Consolidated with 2007-CP-1516

JAMES E. PRUITT AND KARLOTTA PRUITT-APPELLANTS

VS.

THE ZONING BOARD OF THE CITY OF LAUREL, MS- APPELLEE. PLANNING COMMISSION

ISSUES

- 1) Was the Laurel, Mississippi City Clerk 's office denying the privilege license for package Beer Retailer in the City of Laurel because of the Little Angels Day Care Center corroborated to the extent indicated in the Laurel City Ordinance no 1372-2000, section 3-31, subsection (b) (2), sufficient to provide a basis for denial?
- of section 37-13-91 of the State of Mississippi Supreme Court code of 1972, as annotated and amended item "E"?
- 2) Was the Laurel, Mississippi City Clerk 's office denying the privilege license for package Beer Retailer in the City of Laurel because of the Little Angels Day Care Center corroborated to the extent indicated in the section 37-13-91 of the State of Mississippi Supreme Court code of 1972, as annoted and amended item "E"
- 3) Did the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission act in error since the Laurel City Ordinance 803.05.02 only give the Commission jurisdiction to conduct public hearing and make decisions for Privilege License that is under four hundred (400) feet from a church or school?
- 4) Did the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission erred by not accepting the report from the City Building Inspector as proof

Appellant 's property was over 400 feet from Daycare Center located at 1603 Susie B Ruffin Ave?

- 5) Since Little Angels Day Care is not a school as defined by Mississippi Supreme Court code 37-13-91 as annotated and amended items "E" and "F", did the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission have jurisdiction to require the Appellant to request a Variance?
- 6) Since Little Angels Day Care is not a school as defined by Mississippi Supreme Court code 37-13-91 as annotated and amended items "E" and "F" , did the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission have jurisdiction to grant a variance to the Appellant?
- 7) After the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission conducted the public hearing and denied the variance petition, was the City Council of Laurel, MS, excluded from conducting a public hearing?
- 8) Did the City Council of Laurel, MS President followed the law by not providing a signed Bill of Exceptions when requested by the Appellant on July 11, 2007 in accordance to Uniform (UCCR) rule #5.05?
- 9) Did, the Judge Billy Joe Landrum, of the Circuit Court of Jones County, Mississippi 2nd Judicial District, ruling, not to hear the appeal, is corroborated to the extent that the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS

Planning Commission did not follow the law of the Mississippi Supreme Court, by not applying the City of Laurel Ordinance No 1372-2000?

- 10) Did the Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his analysis that the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission did not act capriciously and arbitrary made the wrong decision in denying the Variance petition?
- 11) Did the Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his analysis that the City Council of Laurel, MS did not act capriciously and arbitrarily and made the wrong decision to not to hear the appeal from the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission?
- 12) Did the Judge Billy Joe Landrum analysis of upholding the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission decision, justifying a finding of dismissed with prejudice as governed by 11-51-75, 1972 of the Supreme Court rule, failure to meet filing time limit?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellants James and Karlotta Pruitt were **required** to request a Variance petition from the City of Laurel Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission for a Beer permit for their Commercial Business located at 1503 Susie B Ruffin Ave. .

On June 14, 2007, a hearing was placed on the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission agenda for a request of a Variance for a business license pursuant to Ordinance no 1372-2000, dealing with the sale and/or consumption of beer and or light wine.

The request for a Variance beer license was denied as the reason was that the Appellant did not submit proof that the Commercial Business was not over 400 feet from a school.

An appeal was filed with the Laurel City Council of Laurel, MS.

On July 3, 2007 the Appeal hearing was denied.

The Appeal was filed with the Circuit Court of Jones County.

The Appeal was not heard in that court.

This issue now comes before the Mississippi Supreme Court for its ruling.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

According to the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning

Commission the Variance petition was denied due to Appellant place of
business located at 1503 Susie B. Ruffin was not over 400 feet from a
school known as The Little Angels Daycare Center, A/K/A Little Angels

Developmental Center. Pre-School Division located at 1603 Susie B Ruffin

Ave. Appellant owned a food service and wanted to add the sale of
packaged Beer and Wine.

The City Building Inspector was sent out to measure the distance from Little Angels Day Care located 1603 Susie B Ruffin to the Plaintiff's Commercial Business location at 1503 Susie B Ruffin Ave.

The results of the inspection was presented to the City of Laurel Clerk To prove Appellant's property was over 400 feet from the Daycare Center., so that the Appellant may request a Beer and light wine Privilege License..

The request was denied and the Appellant was <u>required</u> to submit a Variance The City Building Inspector was sent out to measure the distance from Little Angels Day Care located 1603 Susie B Ruffin to the Plaintiff's Commercial Business location at 1503 Susie B Ruffin Ave.

The results of the inspection was presented to the City of Laurel Clerk To prove Appellant's property was over 400 feet from the Daycare Center., so that the Appellant may request a Beer and light wine Privilege License..

The request was denied and the Appellant was **required** to submit a Variance License.

Appellant filed a Variance Permit Application in accordance to City

Ordinance No. 1203-1993,3-31,3-16-93 (C). (Ordinance C)

Involving Ordinance No. 1372-2000, section 3-31, subsection (b) (2) which states:that no privilege license shall be granted for the sale and/or consumption of beer and/or light wine "when the nearest part of the

structural premises is located within four hundred (400) feet of a church or school" (exhibit B)

The definition of a school is governed exclusively by the following rules

1) Section 37-13-91 of the State of Mississippi Supreme Court code of 1972, as annotated and amended item "E" School which states:

School- mean any <u>public school</u> in this state or non <u>public school</u> in this state is in session each school year for at least one hundred eighty (180) school days, except that the "nonpublic" school term shall be the number of days each school shall require <u>for promotion from</u> grade to grade" (rule A)

2) Mississippi Supreme Court Code of 1972 section 37-13-91 item "F" Compulsory- school aged Child states:

A child who has attained or will attain the age of six (6) years on or before September 1 of the calendar year and who has not attained the age of seventeen (17) years on or before September 1 of the calendar year; and shall include any child who has attained or will attain the age of five (5) years on or before September 1 and has enrolled in a full-day public school kindergarten program. Provided, however, that the parent or guardian of any child enrolled in a full day public school kindergarten program shall be allowed to disenroll the child

from the program on a one-time basis, and such child shall not be deemed a compulsory school-age child until the child attains the age of six (6) years.(Rule A)

3) Mississippi Supreme Court Code of 1972 section 37-21-6 Mississippi Early Childhood Education Program states:

The Mississippi Childhood Education Program shall be the kindergarten

program implemented by local school districts under the minimum

education program (Rule B)

Laurel Zoning Ordinance, 803.06.01 gives Jurisdiction to the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission to conduct the public hearings and make decisions on any requested Variance that is **under** (400) four hundred feet (exhibit E)

The Appellant requested the Variance License in accordance to Laurel City Ordinance # 1203-1993,3-31,(C) (exhibit C)

The structural premise is on lot 9 which is 402 ft from the business location. (exhibit A)

The owner also owns the lot next to the Daycare center, the Appellant was told a ruling from the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission would be needed.

On June 14, 2007, a hearing was placed on the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission agenda requesting a Variance for a business License according to Ordinance #1203-1993,3-16-93,(C) (2)

The request was denied. (exhibit C)

An appeal was filed with the Laurel City Council of Laurel, MS .. On July 3, 2007 the Appeal hearing was denied.

On July 11, 2007 a request for a Bill of Exceptions was requested by the appellant to the City Council of Laurel, MS President in accordance to Uniform Rules of Circuit And County Court Practice (UCCCR P) Rule #.5.05. (Rule E)

That request was refused.

13) On July 11, 2007 Appellant filed an original timely appeal with record into the Circuit Court office. In accordance to the MISSISSIPPI RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURES adopted effective Jan 1,1995 Rule #1 states Trial court practice is governed by the Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure, Mississippi Rules of Evidence, applicable uniform rules, and local rules where adopted pursuant to M.R.C.P. 83. (Rule C)

The term "trial court" in these rules includes a circuit or chancery court sitting as an appellate court And in accordance to the **UNIFORM**

RULES OF CIRCUIT AND COUNTY COURT PRACTICE

Adopted Effective May 1, 1995 Rule 5.04 states:

The party desiring to appeal with the Circuit Clerk, --In all appeals—The notice of appeal and payment of cost must be simultaneously filed and paid thirty (30) days of the entry of the order or judgment being appeal. (Rule D)

14) On August 30, 2007 Judge Landrum determined he was not going to hear the case, and stated he was going to uphold the ruling of the Commission, however, the actual order on file is not upholding the commission finding but a Dismiss with prejudice pursuant to Mississippi Supreme Court 11-51-75.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Appellant will present evidence that Little Angels Daycare Center, A/K/A Little Angels Developmental Center Pre-School Division is not a school.

The Appellant will present evidence that the Commercial Business is over 400 feet from the Day Care Center.

It will be proven that the City of Laurel License Department was in violation of the Laurel City Ordinance no 1372-2000 section 3-31,

subsection (b) (2). when it did not provide the Appellant a Beer license (exh B).

It will be proven that the City of Laurel License Department was in violation of the Laurel City Ordinance no 1203-1993,3-16-93 subsection

(C) when it required the Appellant to apply for a Distance Variance Permit to sell beer and light wine. (Ordinance B).

Appellant will also prove The Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS

Planning Commission did not have jurisdiction to conduct a public hearing on this case.

It will be shown that the Judge Billie Joe Landrum erred in his decision not to hear the case.

ARGUMENT

The Appellant, James E. Pruitt was denied a Privilege License to sell beer and light wines because of the Little Angel Day Care Center. The Laurel, MS. City Ordinance prohibits the Sale of beer and light wine within four hundred (400) feet of a church or school.

The Commercial Business located at 1503 Susie B. Ruffin Avenue is zoned C-3 Heavy Commercial District. The Appellant sold food at the establishment and wanted to sell packaged beer. A beer license was granted by the Mississippi State Tax Commission to the Appellant to sell packaged

beer. The appellants went to the Laurel City Clerk's office and applied for a Privilege License for Package Beer Retailer in the City of Laurel, and was denied because Little Angels Daycare Center located at 1603 Susie B Ruffin allegedly was less than 400 feet from the Commercial Business.

The City of Laurel sent their City Inspector Mr. Daniel Hayes - Building Inspector out to measure the distance from lot 9 where the "structural premise" is located to the Appellant's Commercial Business. Additionally the Daycare center is on lot 9 with a fence separating the Daycare Center area from lots 10 and 11 (Exhibit A). Mr. Hayes is a paid City employee, paid with the tax dollars of the people of the City of Laurel for his experience and expertise. Mr. Hayes is one of the head Inspectors that go out and site property owners for various property violations and report his findings to the City Council of Laurel, MS at their monthly public meetings. He is well respected in his profession. His report determined the distance from Little Angels Daycare Center lot 9 to the Appellant's Commercial Business was 402 feet. (exhibit A)

The Appellant met the measurement criteria as established by the Laurel City Ordinance No 1372-2000, 3-31 (b), (2). (exh B)

The owner of the Little Angels Daycare Center is Angela Carmichael. She is the wife of the 4th Ward City Council of Laurel, MS., Mr. George

Carmichael. Mr. Carmichael had the City Building Inspector to perform an additional measurement from lot 11 which is owned by the Carmichael's and is next to the Little Angels Daycare center but is not currently used by the Little Angels Daycare Center for any type of Daycare Center activities.

When *that* measurement was taken it was less than 400 feet from the Appellant's Commercial Business...

Appellant's proved with the letter from the City Inspector that the Commercial business location is over 400 feet from the Daycare Center and therefore should have been granted a Beer license. (Exhibit A)

Little Angels a/k/a Little Angels Developmental Pre-School, is not a school according to the Mississippi State Supreme Court code of 1972. The rules of a school are clearly stated and are governed by:

1) section 37-13-91 of the State of Mississippi Supreme Court code of 1972, as annotated and amended item "E" School which states:

School- mean any <u>public school</u> in this state or non <u>public school</u> in this state is in session each school year for at least one hundred eighty (180) school days, except that the "nonpublic" school term shall be the number of days each school shall require <u>for promotion from</u> grade to grade" (Rule A)

2) Mississippi Supreme Court Code of 1972 section 37-13-91 item "F" Compulsory- school aged Child states:

A child who has attained or will attain the age of six (6) years on or before September 1 of the calendar year and who has not attained the age of seventeen (17) years on or before September 1 of the calendar year; and shall include any child who has attained or will attain the age of five (5) years on or before September 1 and has enrolled in a full-day public school kindergarten program. Provided, however, that the parent or guardian of any child enrolled in a full day public school kindergarten program shall be allowed to disenroll the child from the program on a one-time basis, and such child shall not be deemed a compulsory school-age child until the child attains the age of six (6) years. (Rule A)

3) Mississippi Supreme Court Code of 1972 section 37-21-6 Mississippi Early Childhood Education Program states:

The Mississippi Childhood Education Program shall be the <u>kindergarten</u>

<u>program</u> implemented by local school districts under the minimum

education program (Rule B)

Little Angels is a Pre-school for children under age 6 year olds and is not governed by Compulsory-school-age laws of the state OF Mississippi. .

Pre-schools are not considered in the above Mississippi Supreme court codes 1972, section 37-21-6, Kindergarten Program as annotated and amended.

Pre schools are also known as playgroups or playschools. Mostly open for a few hours a day, these are meant to provide young children with a place to play close to their homes. Pre schools usually cater for 3-5 year olds. They are ideal for children due to start school, and are not regulated by the Compulsory school aged children mandated by the state of Mississippi. Pre-school/ learning centers, Developmental Centers benefits, apart from learning how to socializes with other children, the child will benefit by acquiring skills useful for a good start in school.

Nora Davis School is the only school in proximity to the Commercial Business location 1503 Susie B. Ruffin, and is over 400 Ft from this Business location.

Therefore, Little Angels should not be used in the distance requirement that is governed by the Ordinance # 1372-2000,3-31(b) (2) adopted by the City of Laurel 1985 for church or school. (exh B)

The Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission acted in error, they did not have jurisdiction over the request for Privilege License

Laurel Zoning Ordinance, 803..06.01 gives Jurisdiction to the Commission to conduct the public hearings and make decisions on any requested Variance that is under (400) four hundred feet or /and over (100) one hundred feet to a church or school only.(exhibit E)

Since Little Angels is not a school as defined by the Mississippi State

Supreme Court codes, the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning

Commission and the City Clerk erred in requiring the Appellant to request a

Zoning Variance permit in accordance to the City of Laurel Ordinance No

803.06.01 (exhibit E)

Since Little Angels is not a school as defined by the Mississippi State

Supreme Court codes, the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning

Commission,

It is out of the jurisdiction of the Commission to grant a Variance according to the City of Laurel Ordinance No 803.06.01. (Exhibit E)

The Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission did not review the written report by the City Building Inspector (Exhibit A) submitted to them by the Appellants. They merely took a vote to deny the petition stating a reason that the property was not over 400 feet from the Daycare Center.

The City Council of Laurel, MS, refused to hear the case which was in violation of section 803.05.02. (exh D) to hear and decide appeals, since there was an error on the part of the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission not to consider the letter of the Laurel City Inspector to prove that the Appellant's property was over 400 feet from the Daycare Center. Therefore the City Council of Laurel, MS did not justify the reason for denial of hearing the appeal.

The City Council of Laurel, MS did not apply the Laurel City Ordinance No 1372-2000, section 3-31, subsection (b) (2) for distance requirement prior to making their decision not to hear the appeal.

The Appeal, fee and record was submitted within the 30 days as allowed in accordance to Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice (URCCP) 5.05.

The City Council of Laurel, MS president refused to sign a Bill of Exception and submit it to the Circuit Clerk therefore the record was submitted by the Appellant.

The Judge Billy Joe Landrum stated that as an appellate judge in this case, that the only thing he can rule on is if whether or not mistakes were made by the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission and the City Council of Laurel, MS arbitrarily made the wrong decision and didn't

follow the law, and that he didn't see that. However, Judge Landrum erred in this analysis. The Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission did not follow the law. The Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission did not review or take into consideration the report filed by the City of Laurel Building Inspector's report that showed the Appellant's Commercial Business was in fact <u>over 400 feet</u> from the Daycare Center. (Exhibit A)

The Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his analysis to not review the case regarding no mistakes were made by the City Council of Laurel, MS Here the City Council of Laurel, MS should have heard the case because errors were made with the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission as they did not apply the proof that the Appellant's property was over 400 feet from the Daycare Center therefore violating the Laurel City Ordinance No. 1372-2000, section 3-31, subsection (b) (2) for dist Thereby the City of Laurel acted arbitrarily and capriciously in making a wrong decision to hear the Appeal so that they may apply the City of Laurel inspection report to verify if the Commercial Property met the criteria of over 400 feet as required by the Laurel City Ordinance No 1372-2000 section 3-31, subsection (b) (2)...

The Appellants has proved that the Laurel City Ordinance No 1372-2000 section 3-31, subsection (b) (2) has been met and satisfied the Appellant's Commercial Business is over 400 feet from the Daycare Center.

The Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his analysis to not review the case regarding no mistakes were made by the City Council of Laurel, MS. Here the City Council of Laurel, MS should have heard the case because errors were made with the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission.

That Little Angels Daycare Center is not a school in accordance to the Mississippi Supreme Court code of 1972 as annotated and amended section 37-13-91 (E), section 37-13-91 (F) and section 37-21-6.

Thereby the City Council of Laurel, MS acted arbitrarily and capriciously in making a wrong decision to not hear the Appeal so that they may apply the Mississippi Supreme Court codes to determine that a Daycare Center is not a school.

Thereby concluding that since the Little Angels Daycare Center a/k/a/ Little Angels Developmental Center Pre-School Division does not qualify as a school as defined by the Mississippi Supreme Court that the hearing should not have been scheduled and the Beer privilege license should have been granted by the City Council of Laurel, MS.

The Appellant has proved that the Commercial Business is over 400 feet from the Little Angels Daycare Center with the City of Laurel Building Inspection

The Appellant has proved that the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission, was negligent in their decision to deny the Variance Petition as they did not consider the Mississippi Supreme Court codes of 1972 section 37-13-91 (e), section 37-13-91 (f) and section 37-21-6 That Little Angels does not meet the criteria of a school and therefore a hearing for a Variance Permit was not required for a beer permit.

The Appellant has proved that the City Council of Laurel, MS was negligent in not hearing the appeal.

The Appellant has proved that the Judge Billie Joe Landrum was negligent when he did not hear the case when filed to the Circuit Court.

CONCLUSION

FOR THE REASONS, the Appellants, James E. and Karlotta Pruitt, prays:

1) That this Supreme Court determine that the Zoning Board Committee and the City Council of Laurel, MS did not comply with the Laurel City Ordinance 1372-2000, section 3-31, subsection (b)(2) rules for distance requirements for Beer privilege Licenses. (exh B

- 2) That this Supreme Court determine that the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission violated Mississippi Supreme Court codes 37-13-91 (E), section 37-13-91 (F) and section 37-21-6 that Little Angels Daycare Center a/k/a Little Angels Developmental Center Preschool Division does not meet the criteria for a school.
- 3) That this Supreme Court determine that the City Council of Laurel, MS. violated Mississippi Supreme Court codes 37-13-91 (E), section 37-13-91 (F) and section 37-21-6 that Little Angels Daycare Center a/k/a Little Angels Developmental Center Pre-school Division does not meet the criteria for a school.
- 4) That this Supreme Court determine that Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his decision, that the Zoning Board of the City of Laurel, MS Planning Commission acted arbitrarily and capriciously in making a wrong decision to deny the Variance Petition.
- 5) That this Supreme Court determine that Judge Billy Joe Landrum erred in his decision, that the City Council of Laurel, MS acted arbitrarily and capriciously in making a wrong decision to deny hearing the Appeal.

6) Declare that Little Angels Daycare Center, a/k/a Little Angels

Developmental Center Pre-School Division is not a school and therefore
should not be used to determine footage for a Beer privilege license.

7) Grant the Appellants the Beer Privilege License.

8) Any other relief by the statue, and grant any other relief this court deems equitable and proper.

I, James E., Appellant state for he and his wife Karlotta Pruitt, Appellant, in

the above complaint that I stated in the manner all parties are familiar with.

James E. and Karlotta Pruitt / Appellants

James E. Pruitt/Pro-Se

622 S. Magnolia Street Laurel, MS 39440 601-326-2025