IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

SUPREME COURT NO. 2007-CP-01518 CONSOLIDATED WITH 2007-CP-01516

JAMES E. PRUITT AND KARLOTTA PRUITT

APPELLANTS

VERSUS

THE ZONING BOARD OF THE CITY OF LAUREL, MISSISSIPPI, PLANNING COMMISSION AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF LAUREL, MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF JONES COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

DAVID M. RATCLIFF 525 CENTRAL AVENUE, STE 1 POST OFFICE BOX 706 LAUREL, MISSISSIPPI 39441 TELEPHONE: (601)425-2303 FACSIMILE: (601)426-6728

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLEE

FACTS

On May 3, 2007 Appellants filed a document entitled Plaintiffs' Complaint and a document entitled Motion in the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial District of Jones County, Mississippi, which was given Cause Number 2007-40-CV5 by the Clerk.

Both of the foregoing documents appear to be an attempt to appeal an unfavorable (to Appellants) Zoning ruling finally denied by Resolution of the City Council of the City of Laurel on April 17, 2007.

On July 11, 2007 Appellants filed a document entitled Notice of Intent and a document entitled Appeal in the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial District of Jones County, Mississippi, which was given Cause Number 2007-73-CV7 by the Clerk.

Both of the foregoing documents appear to be an attempt to appeal an unfavorable (to Appellants) Zoning ruling finally denied by Resolution of the City Council of the City of Laurel on July 3, 2007.

ARGUMENT AND LAW

As stated Appellants failed to timely file their attempted Appeal pursuant to §11-51-75 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as Annotated and Amended, which exclusively governs such grievances and requires the Notice of Appeal to be filed within ten (10) days from the date of adjournment of the City Council meeting where final denial was made which was April 17, 2007. Appellant also failed to file a Bill of Exceptions as required by said statute.

This Court most recently discussed the issue of timely filing in *Bowen v. DeSoto County Board of Supervisors* 852 So2d 21 (Miss 2003) where it stated citing *Newell v. Jones County* 731

1

So2d 580 (Miss 1999), "in *Newell* this Court said: The statutes ten (10) day time limit in which to appeal the decision of the Board is both mandatory and jurisdictional. *Moore v. Sanders* 569 So2d 1148, 1150 (Miss 1990). Where an appeal is not perfected within the time constraints no jurisdiction is conferred on the appellate court, and the untimely action should be dismissed."

In the *Bowen* case the Court did distinguish regarding the Notice of Appeal and the filing of the Bill of Exceptions basically stating that the Notice must be filed within ten (10) days, but that the Bill of Exceptions could be filed within a reasonable time.

The failure of Appellants to file their Notice of Appeal within ten (10) days in Cause Number 2007-40-CV5 requires dismissal of this appeal just as it was dismissed in the lower Court in the opinion of Appellee.

In Cause Number 2007-73-CV7 the facts are slightly different in that the Appellants sought the same result from the City of Laurel, Mississippi but filed a document which was appealed on July 11, 2007 following final denial by the City Council on July 3, 2007. The Circuit Court dismissed Cause Number 2007-73-CV7 for failure to comply with §11-51-75 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as Annotated and Amended, on July 31, 2007 because of failure to file a Bill of Exceptions.

Although the Court did not provide an opinion it is clear from the pleadings filed by Appellants (Motion to Strike Defendant's Motion to Dismiss with Prejudice Plaintiff's Appeal on the Record in Cause Number 2007-73CV7 and similar Motions filed in Cause Number 2007-40-CV5), that Appellants intended to "try" this case on August 20, 2007 pursuant to Order of the Court without having filed a Bill of Exceptions, so the Court reasoned that Appellants had no intention of ever filing a Bill of Exceptions. It is also clear from examining those Motions stated

2

above in Cause Number 2007-40-CV5, that Appellants believed incorrectly that the City was required to prepare and file a Bill of Exceptions for Appellants which under §11-51-75 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as Annotated and Amended, is a requirement of Appellants. The only requirement the Appellee had was to accommodate Appellants by allowing them access and copying of its records regarding the subject matter of the Appeal and once Appellants prepared same, in the form of a Bill of Exceptions, to have the Council President sign if it was correct. All of this Appellee was ready to do if Appellant had proceeded properly. Appellants did not proceed properly pursuant to Statute requiring perfection of its appeal by filing its Bill of Exceptions and the Circuit Court properly dismissed Cause Number 2007-73-CV7.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion a cursory examination of the pleadings filed by Appellants will show that the paramount reason for dismissal by the trial Court in both cases was the failure of Appellants to comply with the requirements of §11-51-75 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as Annotated and Amended. Further, it is obvious that Appellants mistakenly attempted to apply the rules regarding appeals from lower courts as opposed to following §11-51-75 which governs appeals by persons aggrieved over decisions of municipalities. For all of the foregoing reason Appellants' appeal to this Court should be denied and the decision of the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial District of Jones County, Mississippi should be upheld.